
May 6, 2020 

D. Paul Stanfield, President
Gregory H. Beberian, Vice President BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
David Cehrs, PhD
Ceil W. Howe, Jr. of the 
Mark C. McKean
Chris Kapheim KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
Masaru Yoshimoto

Gentlemen and Members of the Public: 

The Regular Monthly Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Kings River Conservation District is to be 
held on Tuesday, May 12, 2020, via ZOOM Web/Teleconference. The web link and call-in information are 
on the Agenda.   

The Regular Monthly Meeting will begin at 1:30 p.m. 

As a result of the COVID-19 emergency and the Governor’s Executive Orders N-29-20 and N-33-20, this 
meeting will occur via remote presence by video and teleconference. There will not be a physical public 
access location. The District is conducting the meeting in this manner to protect public health by avoiding 
public gatherings and requiring social distancing. At the same time, the District remains committed to 
transparency. Members of the public will be able to listen to and watch the meeting, and comment if 
desired. Public comments and questions will only be possible during the agendized Public Comment 
portion of the meeting. Please see the pages between this notice and the agenda for guidelines and an 
idea of what to expect. 

The patience and cooperation of all participants is appreciated. While every effort has been made to 
streamline the experience and conduct meetings in the manner to which our stakeholders have grown 
accustomed, there may be technical issues and human error. We will attempt to promptly correct any 
issues that arise. 

Individuals who require special accommodations are requested to contact the Assistant Secretary of the 
Board by phone at: (559) 237-5567 or by email at: cmclaughlin@krcd.org. 

Sincerely, 

Paul G. Peschel, 
Board Secretary 

PP/cm 

File: 200.01 



Agenda 

KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Date:  May 12, 2020 – Tuesday  
Time:  1:30 P.M.  

Location:  Web or Teleconference via ZOOM 

ZOOM Link:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85432872008 
ZOOM Call-In: +1 669 900 6833 ; Meeting ID 854 3287 2008
ZOOM One-Tap Mobile:  +16699006833,,85432872008# 

1. Additions to or Deletions from the Agenda

2. Public Presentations or Comments
Presentations or comments by the public on matters on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of
the Board, limited to a timeframe set by the Board President. This is the only portion of the meeting 
where the public can comment. 

3. Approval of Minutes of the April 14, 2020 Regular Board Meeting

REPORTS 

4. Water Conditions (KRWA Staff)
The Kings River Watermaster or Staff will give a report on the water storage on the Kings River
system, inflow and outflow at Pine Flat Reservoir, and the available flood control space on
the system.

5. Weather Modification (Todd Flanagan)
The representative/s from North American Weather Consultants will give a presentation and a
report on the Kings River Precipitation Program.

6. Directors’ Reports
Each member of the Board will have the opportunity to report on meetings and conferences
attended during the prior month on behalf of the District. No action will be taken.

7. Staff Reports
The Board will receive reports on the prior month’s activities from members of the District
management staff:

a. Paul Peschel, General Manager

b. Cristel Tufenkjian, Director of External Affairs

c. Charlotte Gallock, Director of Water Resources

d. David Merritt, Deputy General Manager

e. Brian Trevarrow, Chief Financial Officer

ACTION ITEMS 

8. Financial Report

a. Budget Expenditures (Brian Trevarrow)
The Auditor will present expenditure to budget comparison reports for the period ending
April 30, 2020. In addition, the monthly investment report for April 2020 will be presented.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85432872008


b. Review of Monthly Disbursements (D. Paul Stanfield)
A member of the Board will report on his review of all bills paid subsequent to the last Board
meeting, the current accounts payable, and will make a recommendation at the meeting.

9. Resolution 20-03: Authorization to File an Application for a Grant Under the Proposition 68 Grant
Program And to Enter into an Agreement with the California Department Of Conservation (David
Merritt) 
The Board will consider adoption of Resolution 20-03, authorizing a grant application with the 
California Department of Conservation.   

ADJOURNMENT 

Note: The public will be given the opportunity to address the Board on any item on the agenda before the Board’s consideration 
of that item. The President may limit the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on particular issues for each individual 
speaker.  

A person with a qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 may request the District provide a 
disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in any public meeting of the District. Such assistance 
includes appropriate alternative formats for the Agendas and Agenda packets used for any public meetings of the District. Requests 
for such assistance and for Agendas and Agenda packets shall be made in person, by telephone, facsimile, or written 
correspondence to the Secretary to the Board of Directors of Kings River Conservation District at the District offices: 4886 E Jensen, 
Fresno, CA, 93725, at least 48 hours before a public District meeting. 

Materials related to any item on this Agenda submitted to the District at the time of or after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s Office at 4886 E. Jensen Avenue, Fresno, CA during normal business hours or 
by calling (559) 237-5567. 



1234 

Minutes 

KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Date: April 14, 2020 – Tuesday  
Time: 1:30 p.m.  
Location: 4886 E. Jensen Avenue, Fresno 

President Stanfield called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT VIA ZOOM 

Paul Stanfield, President 
Gregory Beberian, Vice President 
David Cehrs, Ph.D. 
Ceil W. Howe Jr.  
Chris Kapheim 
Mark C. McKean  
Mike Yoshimoto  

DIRECTORS ABSENT 
None 

OTHERS PRESENT 
KRCD Staff  
Paul Peschel 
David Merritt (via Zoom)  
Brian Trevarrow 
Cristel Tufenkjian (via Zoom) 
Charlotte Gallock (via Zoom) 
Debra Dunn (via Zoom) 
Corey McLaughlin  

Consultants & Others 
Steve Haugen (via Zoom) 
Todd Flanagan (via Zoom) 
Matthew Meadows (via Zoom) 

ROUTINE OPENING BUSINESS 

1. Additions to or Deletions from the Agenda

2. Public Presentations or Comments
None. 

3. Approval of Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Board Meeting
It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Yoshimoto, and unanimously 
carried, that the minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Board Meeting be approved. 

Roll Call Vote with no Directors Absent or Abstaining: 
Director Stanfield: Aye 
Director Beberian: Aye 
Directory Cehrs: Aye 
Director Howe: Aye 
Director Kapheim: Aye 

1

AGENDA ITEM 3



1235 

Director McKean: Aye 
Director Yoshimoto: Aye 

REPORTS 

4. Weather Modification (Todd Flanagan)
Todd Flanagan, of North American Weather Consultants, reported on weather 
conditions, and both ground and flight-based weather modification activities to-date. 
As part of addressing changes to the Kings River System as a result of the impacts of 
weather in the area, the Kings River Water Association Assistant Water Master 
reported on water storage on the Kings River System, inflow and outflow at Pine Flat 
Reservoir, snow course measurements, and the available flood control space on the 
system. 

5. Directors’ Reports
None. 

6. Staff Reports
The Board received reports on the prior month’s activities from members of the District
management staff:
a. Paul Peschel, General Manager/Secretary, reported the following:

i. An update on the District’s response to COVID-19.
ii. A change in the District’s organizational chart

iii. State and Federal legislative, budgetary, and regulatory activities of note

ACTION ITEMS 

7. Financial Report
a. Budget Expenditures (Brian Trevarrow)

The Auditor presented expenditure to budget comparison reports for the period
ending March 31, 2020. In addition, the monthly investment report for March 2020
was presented.

b. Review of Monthly Disbursements (Mark McKean)
It was moved by Director McKean, seconded by Director Yoshimoto, and
unanimously carried, that bills in the amount of $777,031.52, as presented in the
schedule of Disbursements and Current Accounts Payable, be approved and ordered
paid.

Roll Call Vote with no Directors Abstaining: 
Director Stanfield: Aye 
Director Beberian: Aye 
Director Howe: Aye 
Director Kapheim: Aye 
Director McKean: Aye 
Director Yoshimoto: Aye 

Absent: Director Cehrs 

8. Resolution 20-02 Designating Authorized Agents for Purposes of FEMA and CalOES
Applications for Funding

It was moved by Director Yoshimoto, seconded by Director Beberian, and 
unanimously carried to adopt Resolution 20-02 designating the General Manager, 
Deputy General Manager, and Director of Water Resources as the Authorized Agents 

2

AGENDA ITEM 3



1236 
 

 

for the purposes of Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) applications for funding, and 
allowing any and all necessary information to be released to the same..  
 

 Roll Call Vote with no Directors Absent or Abstaining:  
 Director Stanfield: Aye 
 Director Beberian: Aye 
 Directory Cehrs: Aye 
 Director Howe: Aye 
 Director Kapheim: Aye 
 Director McKean: Aye 
 Director Yoshimoto: Aye 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, President Stanfield adjourned the meeting at 2:25 p.m. 
       

__________________________________ 
                 Paul G. Peschel 

     Board Secretary 
 
 
________________________________________Approved on _________________, 2020 
                    Board President 
 
 
 
 
  

3

AGENDA ITEM 3



 
 
 
 

 
May 6, 2020 
 

Memorandum  
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Paul G. Peschel, P.E., General Manager 
 

SUBJECT: General Manager’s Status Report for the Month of April 2020 
 
This memorandum was prepared to supplement the monthly reports of the District’s management 
team and to highlight specific items and activities for the month of April 2020. 
 

State Affairs 
 
The City of Fresno extended their stay-at-home orders through May 31. The City indicated that 
economic conditions continue to worsen in the State with impacts on people’s livelihoods and 
government services.  
 
Governor Gavin Newsom provided key indicators to California’s decisions for modifying Stay-at-Home 
and other orders during the COVID-19 pandemic. The Governor also formed the Business and Jobs 
Recovery Task Force shortly after he announced a multi-state Task Force with Oregon and 
Washington to coordinate the reopening of our regional economy. The Task Force will be co-chaired 
by Governor’s Chief of Staff Ann O’Leary and Tom Steyer. Task Force members include, all California 
former governors and California legislative leaders, former Federal Reserve Chair Janet Yellen, and 
other notables, such as Disney Executive Chairman Bob Iger, ILWU President Willie Adams, President 
and CEO of the California Community Foundation Antonia Hernandez, former head of the Small 
Business Administration Aida Álvarez, Apple CEO Tim Cook and Don Cameron.  

Legislative 
 
When the Legislature returns, they will focus on the budget, which has a constitutional deadline of 
June 15. Budget priorities are COVID-19 response, wildfire prevention, and homelessness. Both 
houses will have dramatically reduced policy and appropriations committee hearings for the 
remainder of the regular session, which ends August 31. 
 
The Assembly returned May 4. About 300 bills were referred to policy committees by the Assembly 
Rules Committee; most are not yet in print. Assembly leadership and committee chairs have not yet 
fully announced which bills will be considered. The speaker asked colleagues to reduce bill loads. The 
committee chairs are responsible for the culling process.  
 
The Senate is expected to return May 11, a date which is subject to ongoing information and guidance 
from health officials. President pro Tempore Toni Atkins is asking chairs to hold the evaluation of 
current bills scheduled for hearings, until the Senate returns, and focus on issues of immediate 
concern while asking Senators to reconsider their priorities and reduce the number of bills.  
 
A State Senate budget hearing was held on April 16. The primary purpose of the hearing was to 
apprise the Administration of the legislature’s oversight role as pertains to the expenditure of funds 

4

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 2 
 

and to ensure that the legislature is kept informed, in particular regarding expenditures associated 
with two bills, SB 89 and SB 117, which are COVID-19 related. 
 
I was recently added to the ACWA State Legislative and Energy committees, in pursuit of Strategic 
Plan goals and objectives. 

Bills 

AB 2182 (Rubio, Blanca D)  
Emergency backup generators: water and wastewater facilities exemption. Position: FAVOR. ACWA 
will not be pursuing their sponsored bill which sought to provide additional flexibility for the use of 
backup power generation during de-energization events. AB 2182 faced a number of hurdles, 
including being referred to two policy committees, and opposition (likely from local air districts and 
environmental entities). SB 1099 (Dodd D), which addresses the same issue, will now be our focus. 
KRCD previously sent two AB 2182 support letters (attached).  
  

SB 917 (Wiener D)  
California Consumer Energy and Conservation Financing Authority: eminent domain: Northern 
California Local Energy Utility District: Northern California Energy Utility Services. Position: 
WATCH. This bill would establish a new process for a potential government takeover of Pacific Gas 
and Electric Company (PG&E) and would reestablish the California Consumer Energy and 
Conservation Financing Authority and authorize it to acquire, by eminent domain, the assets or 
ownership of certain electric or gas utilities that meet its criteria, including PG&E. Local publicly 
owned energy utilities may elect to join in the eminent domain action brought by the Authority and 
acquire that portion of the electrical or gas system necessary to provide service within its borders. The 
bill also grants bonding authority to enable the financing of the potential acquisition. 

SB 1099 (Dodd D) 
Emergency backup generators: critical facilities: exemption. Position: FAVOR. Co-sponsored by CA 
Municipal Utilities Association and the Las Virgenes Municipal Water District. The bill would require 
air districts to grant a variance if there is an exceedance in runtime during a Public Safety Power 
Shutoff, and for testing and maintenance hours if they exceed the limit but are in compliance with 
NFPA Standard 110. A five-year sunset clause is included and the Energy Commission is required to 
perform a study on emergency backup generation options and opportunities to transition to clean 
energy technologies. Position: FAVOR   

SB 1280 (Monning D)  
Drinking water: consolidation and extension of service: at-risk water systems. Position: WATCH. This 
bill authorize the State Water Resources Control Board to order consolidation between a receiving 
water system and an at-risk water system, as defined, upon receipt of a petition that substantially 
conforms to the specified-referenced policy adopted by the State Board and that is either approved by 
the water system’s governing body or signed by at least 30% of the households served by the water 
system. For purposes of that provision, the bill would authorize the State Board to contract with a 
technical assistance provider or appoint an administrator to provide information to a community 
regarding the petition process, to assist with the preparation of a petition, or to evaluate whether a 
water system is an at-risk water system.  

ACWA State Legislative Committee 
 
The committee met via conference call on April 7. Of relevance was a discussion on ACWA-sponsored 
AB 2182 (Rubio), which as noted above ACWA has pulled.  
 

5

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 3 
 

Other Activities 
 
A letter (attached) sent to California Governor Gavin Newsom – signed by over 75 California 
agricultural organizations, county farm bureaus, and prominent farmers – requests that the Governor 
take the necessary steps to help secure next year’s food supply. The parties urged the Governor to 
direct State agencies and departments to find ways to maximize water supplies for farmers this year, 
until such time that the food supply chain from farmer to grocery store shelf can be normalized. The 
letter also recommends specific actions regarding State and Federal stimulus efforts to ensure they 
address the water supply infrastructure that serves California’s farmers and supports the future of our 
State and national food supply.  

Budget 
 
Shutdown orders have significantly reduced the flow of sales tax dollars. The reduction is expected to 
be much greater for the 2020-21 fiscal year than for the remainder of the 2019-20 fiscal year. Although 
the 2020-21 fiscal year May Revision is normally the barometer used to update revenue projects, a 
later August Revision will be used to more substantially project revised 2020-21 fiscal year revenues, 
in large part due to a delay in personal and corporate income tax receipts which accounts for 70-80 
percent of the General Fund. It is anticipated that the budget will be under severe pressure for the 
next two to three fiscal years. At a Senate budget hearing, it was communicated that the first-year 
revenue impact is expected to be as much as a $35 billion shortfall with an additional $85 billion in 
years thereafter.  
 
With respect to the May Revision, the Department of Finance (DOF) invoked a “workload budget” 
designation, to be adopted by the legislature June 15, which means the 2020-21 fiscal year financial 
plan is restricted to an extension of the current year spending. Further, the DOF director authorized 
the Controller to issue Revenue Anticipation Warrants (RAWs). This permits deficit spending by 
allowing payment of current debts with warrants that anticipate revenue received after the new fiscal 
year begins July 1. Also, the DOF issued a directive to all agencies and departments that places a 
qualified stop on any new contracts, acquisitions, and non-core expenditures in the current fiscal year. 
Exceptions are allowed for projects that are urgent, raise revenue or reduce expenses. 
 
Although the State currently benefits from a $17.5 billion rainy-day fund, only one-half can be 

accessed in any one fiscal year and the fund is not anticipated to be nearly sufficient to address the 

anticipated revenue shortfall. The revenue situation is compounded by an estimated cost of more than 

$7 billion to fight COVID-19, although indications from an April 20 Assembly Committee Budget 

hearing are that $5 billion will be reimbursed through FEMA. Members also expressed concern with 

the lack of communication, coordination and transparency.  

Bonds 
 
It is not clear if a State General Obligation Bond proposal for climate resilience will move forward this 
year. Five Bonds are still active: the Governor-proposed Climate Resilience Bond, SB 45, AB XXX 
(unnumbered), AB 252, and AB 3256. AB 3256 (Eduardo Garcia), is scheduled for a May 13 Assembly 
Natural Resources Committee hearing. This bond was recently increased from $4 billion to $6.9 
billion. AB XXX contains $1 billion in proposed bonds to assist the SWRCB in providing grants and 
loans for safe drinking water, stormwater, and wastewater projects. 

Regulatory 
 

SWRCB Fees 
 6

AGENDA ITEM 7a.

https://www.familyfarmalliance.org/so/32N7HzSo1/c?w=GpGNN5IOpi3F07LuLEoz1B2zTVQ2gYnzTvSyO8q9Zn0.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZmFybXdhdGVyLm9yZy9mYXJtLXdhdGVyLW5ld3MvbWF5LTEtMjAyMC1sZXR0ZXItZ292ZXJub3ItbmV3c29tLyIsInIiOiIzY2FlZDkwMS1iZWJlLTRiMzctNDM1Zi1hMzUxZWM1ZjE0YzEiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiIxODFkYWIwMy0yM2RlLTRmOTEtYWIwOC05NmQ5MGM1YTQyZDYifQ


Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Working with Bob Gore, from The Gualco Group, in preparation for the June 9 fee stakeholder 
workshops. It is anticipated that fees good go up by 20 percent due to the budget impact of COVID-19. 

SAFE Drinking Water Fund  
 
The new Safe and Affordable Drinking Water for Equity and Resilience (SAFER) program begins July 
1. The final policy draft is completed. The funds (low interest loans and grants) are being administered 
by the Division of Financial Assistance (DFA). DFA will coordinate with the State Water Control 
Board, Division of Drinking Water. The program is funded by a continuous annual appropriation of 
$130M from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF). Prop. 68 and the State Revolving Funds 
will also help fund the SAFER program. Disadvantaged communities are the primary focus of SAFER. 
 
An advisory committee has been formed and met twice. The committee is required to adopt an 
expenditure plan each year. This will be adopted in Mid-May. The plan reports out the previous year's 
expenditure and the following year's planned expenditures. See also the Budget section above.  
 

Proposed Decision on De-Energization of Electric Facilities 
 
The CPUC released R. 18-12-005 Proposed Decision, Decision Adopting Phase 2 Updated and 
Additional Guidelines for De-Energization of Electric Facilities to Mitigate Wildfire Risk. If approved, 
the Proposed Decision would provide additional guidance to the electric IOUs for de-energization. 
This item will be heard, at the earliest, at the Commission’s May 28 Business Meeting. ACWA is party 
to this rulemaking and submitted comments in February to the CPUC on the proposed guidelines. In 
partnership with the California Water Association, ACWA briefed several of the Commissioners’ 
advisors on the impacts of de-energization to public water and wastewater agencies. See related SB 
1099 above.  

State Matters 

Incidental Take Permit 
 

As mentioned in previous Board reports, the State has filed lawsuit against the Federal Government on 

the Biological Opinions and issued an Incidental Take Permit. Multiple intervention attempts have 

been made from Congressional representatives, but it appears that the State will be escalating the 

situation. We have a letter (attached) to the Governor supporting State Water Project water rights 

holders impacted by the State’s decisions. KRCD, constituents and stakeholders that are SWP water-

rights holders are the County of Kings (9305 acft), Dudley Ridge Water District (43,350 acft), Empire 

West Side Irrigation District (3000 acft), and Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District (87,471 acft). 

KRCD helping maintain these supplies will reduce impacts to groundwater supplies and the quantity 

of water required to meet SGMA requirements. See also the Central Valley and State Water Project 

section below.  

Federal Affairs 
 
The Senate returned to Washington on May 4. The House initially planned to return May 4 but House 
leaders delayed the chamber’s return citing potential health risks. The current likely return is the week 
of May 10. Speaker Pelosi stopped plans to amend House rules to allow remote voting and committee 
work during the pandemic. 
 
 

7

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 5 
 

Legislative  

COVID-19 
 
The State’s allocation from the CARES Act is estimated at $8.3 billion. Fresno County is expected to 
receive approximately $81 million and the City of Fresno $92 million. Kings and Tulare Counties will 
not receive funding directly. Depending on how funds are distributed, KRCD may be eligible to 
receive funding from the City and County of Fresno. Funding can only be used to cover direct costs 
associated with the coronavirus response. Loss of revenue is not eligible for Federal aid; however, 
significant pressure is on Congress to add loss of revenue as a eligible for Federal aid. Congress is also 
being pressured to provide direct relief to communities under 500,000 in population as well as to 
public agencies of all types, including special districts and public utilities.  
 
Discussions continue about providing additional aid to state and local governments in the next 
package, but no agreement has been reached between Democrats and Republicans on whether or how 
much aid should be provided. House Speaker Nancy Pelosi said she opposed legislation shielding 
businesses from legal liability if employees returning to work become ill with coronavirus. Senate 
Majority Leader Mitch McConnell said additional legislation will not move forward without liability 
protection and that non-COVID-19 related legislation, such as an infrastructure package, would need 
to be looked at separately from any new virus legislation. President Trump supports more flexibility for 
state and local governments in applying COVID-19 aid, but wants a payroll tax cut enacted first. He 
also supports an infrastructure package, but it currently appears unlikely that the next COVID-19 
relief bill will include infrastructure. Members are unlikely to seriously consider legislation until mid-
May. 
 
Support State and Local Leaders Act, introduced by Rep. Schneider (D-IL), would make states and 
local governments eligible for the emergency paid leave payroll tax credits.   
 
The Federal Reserve announced that it was expanding its lending program for state and local 
governments; the Municipal Liquidity Facility (MLF). The program was initially announced in early 
April as part of the Federal government's initiative to provide $2.3 trillion to support businesses, 
households, and communities during the coronavirus pandemic. As part of the program, the Federal 
government agreed to buy $500 billion in short-term municipal bonds from states, counties and cities 
with populations greater than one million.  
 
The announcement acknowledged that smaller counties and cities as well as other governmental 
entities (such as many KRCD constituents) that issue municipal bonds (e.g. municipal utilities) were 
ineligible for the program. Although ineligible for the program they would and do benefit from the 
program in two ways. First, the MLF will improve the overall stability and liquidity of the municipal 
bond market. Second, states, counties, and cities that qualify for the program can use proceeds from 
the purchase of bonds by the MLF to purchase bonds issued by, or otherwise support, the municipal 
governments and government entities that do not qualify for the program. Additionally, consideration 
is being given to expanding the MLF to allow a limited number of governmental entities that issue 
bonds backed by their own revenue to participate directly in the program as eligible users.  

Corps Bills 
 

Water Resources Development Act 
 
Though infrastructure will most likely not be a part of a future coronavirus bill, House and Senate 
committees are moving forward with authorizing legislation that could form the basis of an 
infrastructure bill later this year. In that regard, the House Transportation and Infrastructure (T&I) 

8

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 6 
 

Committee took Member requests for their version of a Water Resources Development Act (WRDA) 
through April. Funding areas applicable to KRCD and our constituents include water storage, 
floodwater protection, and repair to irrigation systems. Also, the Senate Environment and Public Work 
Committee is conducting an information-gathering process on draft water infrastructure legislation. 
We provided project input to our Federal lobbyists.  
 
In addition to the House T&I Committee WRDA proposal, the Senate Environment and Public Works 
(EPW) Committee approved S. 2302, a $287 billion America’s Transportation Infrastructure Act 
highway bill, they are marking up a $17 billion America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) which 
includes WRDA, and a $2.5 billion Drinking Water Infrastructure Act. Consideration is being given to 
combining these bills into an infrastructure package. Even if an infrastructure package is passed, 
funding is separate and would need to be appropriated under the aforementioned 2021 fiscal year 
spending bills, which as noted are being limited. The Senate drinking water bill may help reduce 
impacts to KRCD constituents associated with KRWQC requirements. 
 
There is a section in the WRDA bill pertaining to the selection process of concern for KRCD and our 
constituents. Funding was limited for Section 219/Environmental Infrastructure projects with funding 
allocated only to projects that have received funding through the annual appropriations process. 
Requests were submitted by our Federal Lobbyist and a number of other California House and Senate 
member to the House T&I Committee to remove that language. We will continue to work with our 
Lobbyist to advocate for inclusion of the language change.  

Reclamation Bills 
 
Very little work occurred on western water and Reclamation bills over the last few weeks as Congress 

was focused on the nation’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. We anticipate that substantive work 

will begin within the next two months. We are currently watching the bills below most of which have 

no substantive updates from the last report.  

S. 1932 (Feinstein – D)  
A new draft of the bill was released in February. A final bill was expected to be released last month 

with hearings and mark-ups in April, but Congress is not planning to introduce the revision in the 

short term due to their work on COVID-19 bills.  

H.R. 2473 (Harder – D)  
Securing Access for the Central Valley and Enhancing (SAVE) Water Resources Act: Would establish 

a "water infrastructure and drought solutions fund" that, among other things, the Interior secretary 

could use to build "new surface or groundwater storage" and "water reclamation and reuse projects." 

The Secretary would also use a portion of the fund to issue grants under the Bureau of Reclamation's 

WaterSMART program that funds reuse and reclamation projects. There is some opposition to the bill 

related to previous objections to the RIFIA provision. This bill, or elements of the bill, could potentially 

be included in a collective House water resources package later in the year. 

H.R. 3723 (Levin – D)  
Would increase funding by $260 million over the next four years for a Bureau of Reclamation 

desalination grant program, among other things.  

H.R. 4891 (Small – D)  
Western Water Security Act: Would provide an additional $120 million to the Bureau of Reclamation's 

WaterSMART program, authorizes an additional $65 million to support desalination design and 

9

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 7 
 

construction, setting aside $15 million for rural desalination projects; and authorizes the Cooperative 

Watershed Management Program; and includes direction and programs on groundwater storage.   

H.R. 5217 (McClintock – R) 
Water Optimization for the West (WOW) Act: Would implement and fund a number of steps toward 

providing for western water security, reliability, modernization, and abundance. This includes 

strengthening the Central Valley Project; authorizing the Secretary of the Interior to participate in the 

development of the Water Blueprint for the San Joaquin Valley; increasing storage and desalination 

projects; pricing related to water deliveries; and river restoration projects, among other things.  

H.R. 5316 (Cox – D) Move Water Now Act:  
Would provide funding for the repairs of major canals affected by land subsidence and for the 

acceleration and completion of repairs to water delivery facilities. If funded, the bill would provide four 

annual appropriations of $50 million (for a total of $200 million) to help pay for the Friant-Kern Canal 

Capacity Correction Project. This bill has advanced out of the House Natural Resources Committee, 

but there has been no further action. 

H.R. 5347 (Cox – D) Disadvantaged Community Drinking Water Assistance Act:  
Would establish a grant program to improve access to safe drinking water in disadvantaged 

communities throughout California. This bill was marked up by, and has advanced out of, the House 

Natural Resources Committee. There has been no further action on this bill. 

H.R. 6617 (Cox – D) Western Water Storage Infrastructure Act:  
This is a new bill introduced by Representative Cox along with Representatives  Harder, Garamendi, 

and Costa. Aside from a few technical changes, the bill is nearly identical to the storage provisions 

included in S. 1932 which provides authority for the Bureau of Reclamation to engage with 

stakeholders to develop surface and groundwater storage. 

HR____ Huffman (D-CA) 
This bill has no bill number yet. Representative Huffman released and called for comments on draft 

legislation addressing a variety of western water issues. The bill is still in draft form and has not been 

introduced. 

Other Bills 

H.R. 1162 (Napolitano – D) Western Water Security Act of 2019:  
Would provide $500 million in funding to address a "huge backlog" in water recycling and reuse 

projects. 

HR 6643 (Schneider - D) Supporting State and Local Leaders Act: 
This is a new bill that addresses provisions in the Families First Coronavirus Relief Act that 

established new mandatory paid emergency sick and family leave programs but precluded public 

employers from being eligible to utilize a tax credit designed to help offset the cost of administering 

the programs. Only private employers are eligible for the tax credit, leaving the entire cost of the extra 

leave solely the local employers’ responsibility.  Our Federal Lobbyist coordinated with staff from both 

Representative Schneider and Cox’s offices to gather co-signers to a letter as well as co-sponsors 

(currently 108). Engagement will continue along with a efforts to include a fix in the next coronavirus 

relief package. 

 

10

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 8 
 

S. 2567 (Murkowski - R and Manchin D) American Energy Innovation Act (AEIA): 
This bill is focused on energy efficiency; renewable energy; energy storage; carbon capture, 

utilization, and storage; advanced nuclear; industrial and vehicle technologies; the Department of 

Energy; mineral security, cyber and grid security and modernization; and workforce development.  

S. 3422 (Gardner – R) Great American Outdoors Act  
The bill contains two major provisions: a $9.5 billion investment in completing deferred maintenance 

projects at national parks and on public lands; and, mandatory annual funding (about $900 

million/year) for the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF).  

ACWA Federal Affairs Committee 
 
The ACWA Federal Affairs Committee Infrastructure Funding Workgroup met on March 22 to initiate 
ACWA’s process to develop project and program priorities for consideration for a Federal economic 
stimulus package focused on public infrastructure. The Workgroup met to discuss an overall approach 
to collecting priorities from member agencies as well as to identify Federal funding programs, either 
existing or new, that would benefit water resource agencies. The Infrastructure Funding Workgroup 
also met on May 6. The May 6 meeting continued the discussion on infrastructure. An associated 
letter is being composed and sent out for input and comments with a goal of completing the letter at 
the next Workgroup meeting on May 20.     

Budget 

2021 Appropriations 
 

Due to the limited time for putting together their 2021 fiscal year spending bills, it appears unlikely 
that major changes will be made by the House to 2021 fiscal year spending for Federal agencies given 
the uncertainty associated with the public health crisis. The House intends to pass most, if not all, 12 
fiscal year 2021 spending bills by the end of June. The House bills will set the foundation for future 
talks with the Senate and provide a means for House Democrats to provide their priorities and how 
they differ from the White House. Similarly, the Senate Appropriations Committee has yet to make any 
allocations, although the Committee intends to mark up most of its 12 bills by July 4. The 2021 fiscal 
year spending caps reached as part of a budget deal last summer should make it easier to move these 
bills, but the current debate over another COVID-19 relief package appears it will delay finalizing the 
12 annual 2021 fiscal year spending bills. Thus, the bills many not be enacted prior to the September 
30 deadline and a continuing resolution (CR) would need to be passed to avoid an October 1 
shutdown.  

USDA Agricultural Research Service (ARS) Snow Research 
 

Our Federal Lobbyists continue to work with Senator Feinstein and Representative Harder’s offices to 
draft legislation that would create and authorize a program to fund snow water supply forecasting 
projects. Near final language for the bill was discussed with staff on March 30 and is currently being 
provided to Federal agencies for comment before official introduction. Options are being explored for 
including funding language in the aforementioned 2021 appropriations process. 

Other Budget Items 
 

The Congressional Budget Office (CBO) released economic projections for the second quarter of 2020, 
finding the economy will experience a sharp, 12-percent GDP contraction; equivalent to an 
annualized decline of 40 percent. CBO also expects the unemployment rate to average nearly 14-
percent during the second quarter. A number of sources were used to develop the projections which 

11

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 9 

include an expectation that social distancing across the country will continue, on average and with 
regional variation, through June along with the possibility of a reemergence of the pandemic. 

Regulatory  

Central Valley Project and State Water Project 

President Trump, vowed during his 2016 campaign to deliver more water from the delta to Central 
Valley farmers. In February, biological opinions were finalized for the delta that would allowing the 
Bureau to do so. California immediately filed a lawsuit seeking to block the opinions from taking 
effect.  

In response, California Attorney General Xavier Becerra, the California Natural Resources Agency, 
and the California Environmental Protection Agency, filed a motion for a preliminary injunction as 
part of a lawsuit challenging the Trump Administration's expansion of Federal water export operations 
in the Central Valley. The lawsuit argues that the diversion of water will cause imminent and 
irreparable harm to species protected under the California Endangered Species Act and the Federal 
Endangered Species Act and thus violates these acts along with the Administrative Procedure Act, and 
the National Environmental Policy Act by failing to protect endangered species and their habitat in the 
Sacramento and San Joaquin River watersheds, including the San Joaquin Delta.  

Shortly after the State filed the lawsuit, they issued its Incidental Take Permit (ITP) for the State Water 
Project's delta operations under State law. Though environmentalists criticized it as not going far 
enough to save species like salmon and delta smelt, it is considered more restrictive than Trump's 
biological opinions. Under the ITP final pumping decision authority is with the State Department of 
Fish and Wildlife and not the Department of Water Resources. 

Interior Secretary David Bernhardt responded to the lawsuit and the incidental take permit (see 
attached letter) reminding California leaders that its ability to act unilaterally in enacting restrictive 
rules governing the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is limited and could violate the law. 

California Central Valley Project (CVP) water agencies filed a lawsuit against the State over 
endangered species protections and the associated State issued incidental take permit. In the lawsuit, 
they claim the State’s Environmental Impact Report (EIR) supporting the ITP does not address 
impacts to the CVP noting their ability to provide water to more than 25 million residents and 
thousands of acres of farmland is threatened and the permit would increase their costs by $22 million 
annually.  

The lawsuit from the State Water Contractors, which represents 27 public water agencies throughout 
the State, was filed in State superior court in Fresno. It claims the permit is not rooted in the best 
available science and contains pervasive and fundamental errors. It also claims the agencies were not 
given adequate time to comment on it. 

The Newsom administration was attempting to address the water situation through voluntary 
agreements, but these developments seem to make the use of that process much less likely. 

Clean Water Act (CWA)  

In the County of Maui v. Hawaii Wildlife Fund court case, the Supreme Court, in a 6-3 decision, 
rejected both sides’ arguments as too extreme and returned the case to the lower courts with further 
guidance. This case deals with application of the Clean Water Act (CWA) to groundwater. The 
National Water Resources Association (NWRA) and a number of agencies intervened in the case on 
behalf of the County taking the position that the CWA should not apply to groundwater. The majority 

12

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 10 
 

opinion, which used a new term “functional equivalent”, stated that in some instances the CWA does 
apply to groundwater but that the determination of applicability requires the use of science and thus 
specific applicability should lie with agencies. The determination and associated opinion did not 
completely clarify when the CWA applies to groundwater leaving to interpretation what discharges are 
excluded by time and distance and related factors.  Justice Breyer, writing for the majority, wrote “we 
do not see how Congress could have intended to create such a large and obvious loop-hole in one of 
the key regulatory innovations of the Clean Water Act.”  On the “fairly traceable” approach, the 
opinion stated that such interpretation “would require a permit in surprising, even bizarre 
circumstances”. 
 
California dischargers are unlikely to face additional regulation under this decision. Under the Porter-
Cologne Water Quality Control Act, California requires permits for discharges to groundwater, even if 
they don’t meet the “functional equivalent” test outlined by Justice Breyer’s majority opinion. 
California regulators may need to adjust their approach to reflect that some of these permits will also 
serve as CWA permits under the State’s authority, but this should not impose significant new burdens 
on regulated entities. 

Waters of the United States (WOTUS) and Navigable Protection Rule 
 

The Trump Administration published in the Federal Register the final version of the Navigable Waters 
Protection Rule providing a new definition of what marshes, wetlands and streams qualify for 
protections under the CWA. Nonetheless, regulatory certainty is not expected anytime soon. 60 days 
after publication lawsuits can be filed. It is expected that litigation will continue beyond Election Day. 
Thus, the future of this version of the WOTUS rule depends on whether Trump wins a second term. 
Similar to the Obama era version, it is expected that this version of the WOTUS rule to be in force in 
some states but not others as litigation runs its course. 
 
In 2015 EPA and the Army adopted revisions to the definition of WOTUS under the Clean Water Act. 
The revisions were referred to as the Clean Water Rule).  Almost immediately, the Rule was 
challenged in court and implementation was halted in a number of states. In March 2017 EPA and the 
ACOE indicated their intent to rescind or revise the Clean Water Rule. In October 2019 EPA and the 
ACOE published “…a final rule to repeal the 2015 Clean Water Rule definition of Waters of the United 
States….and to restore the regulatory text that existed prior to the 2015 Rule.” Today’s publication of 
the final WOTUS definition will replace the rule published in October 2019.   

Key Activities, Events, and Meetings 

• April 6: Weekly Meeting with Leadership Team 
• April 8: Pre-Leg Committee Meeting Conference Calls 
• April 10: Conference Call Regarding Fresno Revised Order 
• April 13: Weekly Meeting with Leadership Team 
• April 14: KRCD Board Meeting 
• April 15: KBWA Advisory Committee and Board of Directors Meetings 
• April 15: KRCD Draft Budget Review Meeting 
• April 16: KRCD Draft Budget Review Meeting 
• April 16: Bi-Weekly Individual Meetings with GM Direct Reports 
• April 16: SFKGSA Board Meeting via Zoom 
• April 17: Internal Meeting Regarding Upcoming State Waterboard Safe Affordable Funding for 

Equitable Resilience (SAFER) Program Meetings 
• April 20: Surface Water Storage Report Update Meeting 
• April 20: Call with Leadership Training Implementer and Leadership Team 
• April 21: KRWA Executive Committee Meeting 

13

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Board of Directors 
April 7, 2020 
Page 11 
 

• April 22: SWRCB Meeting Strategy Call  
• April 23: Luncheon Leadership Webinar 
• April 24: ACWA State Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting 
• April 27: Leadership Development Training 
• April 28: KRWQC Budget Committee Meeting 
• April 29: Leadership Team Discussion on Office Space Allocations 
• May 4: Weekly Meeting with Leadership Team 
• May 6: ACWA Federal Affairs Infrastructure Funding Workgroup Meeting 

 
 
PP/CT/cm 
 
R20-0025 
File: 202.01 

14

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Bill KRWA

AB 352 (Garcia, Edurado D) Wildfire Prevention, Safe Drinking Water, Prep., Flood Protect. Bond Act 2020 

AB 916 (Muratsuchi D) Pesticide use: glyphosate Oppose

AB 2182 (Rubio, Blanca D) Emergency backup generators: water and wastewater facilities exemption. Favor

AB 2502 (Quirk D) GSPs: impacts on managed wetlands Oppose

AB 2623 (Arambula D) Sustainable groundwater management

AB 2693 (Bloom D) Watershed Restoration Administration: Oroville, Shasta, and Trintiy Reservoirs Watch

AB 2720 (Salas D) CEQA: negative decs and mitaged negative decs: groundwater recharge projects Watch

AB 3256 (Garcid, Eduardo D) Climate risks: bond measures Watch

ACA 3 (Mathis R) Clean Water for All Act Watch
SB 45 (Allen D) Wildfire Prevention, Safe Drinking Water, Drought Prep, and Flood Protect. Bond Act of 

2020 Watch

SB 69 (Wiener D) Ocean Resiliencey Act of 2019 Oppose/C.

SB 559 (Hurtado D) California Water Commission: grant: Friant-Kern Canal Watch

SB 797 (Wilk R) Water resources: permit to appropriate: application procedure Watch

SB 917 (Weiner D) California Consumer Energy and Conservation Financing Authority: eminent domain: 

Northern California Local Energy Utility District: Northern California Energy Utility Services.

SB 964 (Skinner D) Chemicals: outdoor application: residential areas

SB 1099 (Dodd D) Emergency backup generators: critical facilities: exemption. Favor

SB 1215 (Stern D) Electricity: microgrids: grant program

SB 1249 (Hurtado D) Water quality: state policy: public hearing

SB 1280 (Monning D) Drinking water: consolidation & extension service: at-risk systems Watch

SB 1356 (Borgeas R) Groundwater sustainability agency: financial authority

NFUA = Not Favored Unless Amended

SIA = Support if Amended

Oppose/C = Oppose/Coalition

15

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



KRCD ACWA VAWC Status

FIA Senate Environmental Quality 

Oppose Senate Agriculture

Favor Asm. Utilities & Energy

Oppose Oppose Oppose Asm. Water, Parks, & Wildlife

Watch Assembly

Watch NFUA

Re-Referred Asm. Water, Parks, & Wildlife, 5/14, 10 

am

Watch Watch Asm. Natural Resources

Watch SIA Re- Referred to Asm. NR, hearing 5/13, 10 am

Watch Watch Assembly - reconsideration

Watch FIA SIA Assembly - first read

Oppose/C. Watch Asm NR

Watch Favor Assembly

Watch Oppose Sen. Nautral Resources & Water

Watch

Sen. Energy Utilities and Communcations hearing 

4/21/20

Oppose Sen. Rules

Favor Support Senate

Favor Sen. Governmental Organization

Watch Sen. Environmental Quality

Watch referred to Sen EQ

Watch Sen. Rules

16

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



March 11, 2020 

The Honorable Chris Holden 
Chair, Assembly Utilities and Energy Committee 
State Capitol, Room 5182 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE:  AB 2182 (Rubio) – Support 

Dear Chair Holden, 

On behalf of the Kings River Conservation District, I am writing to express our strong SUPPORT 
for AB 2182, which would provide additional flexibility for the use of backup power generation 
during public safety power shutoff (PSPS) events.  

These PSPS events put great pressure on the critical service providers that Californians rely on 
during a power outage, including: fire, police, medical, communications, and water and 
wastewater personnel and facilities. Water and wastewater agencies are responsible for 
providing essential public health and safety services, including drinking water, wastewater 
treatment, and water for fire suppression. Supplying and treating water and wastewater 
requires reliable energy, and without electric utilities providing that power, water agencies must 
secure alternative reliable sources of power.  

When PSPS protocols were implemented last fall, a number of challenges related to backup 
power generation came to light. First, it was unclear if use of generators during PSPS events was 
considered “emergency use” under state and local rules.  

Second, rules regarding emergency generator use vary significantly around the state, and in 
some regions, the local air quality management districts have implemented strict limits on the 
amount of time that an emergency generator can be used, which has catastrophic implications if 
a critical facility runs up against that limit during a PSPS event.  

Finally, the California Air Resources Board has established rules regarding testing and 
maintenance limits for emergency generators. While these rules may be adequate for normal 
generator use, PSPS events last several days and these generators are under tremendous strain 
for which they were not designed. Ultimately, a lack of rigorous testing and maintenance of 
these generators can and has led to failures of backup power systems during PSPS events. 

This bill provides that the use of backup generators by critical public health and safety providers 
during a PSPS event is considered “emergency use” regardless of whether an emergency has 
been declared by the Governor. In addition, the bill would allow providers of critical public 

17

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Page 2 
KRCD Support Letter 

health and safety services to rely upon backup generators for the duration of PSPS events 
without possible violation of local or state regulations. Finally, due to the unprecedented 
duration of reliance on these generators, this proposal would also allow these service providers 
to test this backup equipment consistent with the testing procedures for maintenance of 
emergency power standby systems established by the National Fire Protection Association.  

For these reasons, Kings River Conservation District strongly SUPPORTS this bill and respectfully 
requests your “Aye” vote when it is heard in the Assembly Committee on Utilities and Energy. 

Sincerely, 

Paul Peschel, General Manager  
Kings River Conservation District 

cc: Assembly Member Rubio 
Members, Assembly Committee on Utilities and Energy  
Kellie Smith, Consultant, Assembly Committee on Utilities and Energy 
Gregory Melkonian, Consultant, Assembly Republican Caucus 

18

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



19

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



20

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



1 

May 1, 2020 

The Honorable Gavin Newsom 
Governor 
State of California 
1303 10th Street, Suite 1173 
Sacramento, California  95814 

Dear Governor Newsom: 

Thank you for your clear and decisive leadership during the COVID-19 pandemic.  Your 
administration’s response to this crisis reflects California’s spirit of community, motivated by the 
innovation and individualism that makes California stronger, safer and a partner its neighbors and 
the nation can count on in the fight against COVID-19. 

California’s agricultural community embodies that same California spirit.  Its farmers responded 
to COVID-19 by developing new ways to grow the nation’s food supply while protecting workers 
on the frontlines, keeping the state and nation fed.  California’s packing houses and distribution 
networks safely deliver food to every grocery store in the nation and will continue to meet the 
demand for abundant, nutritious food for the American people.  But as it has for all industries, the 
COVID-19 crisis has revealed weaknesses in agriculture that must be addressed.   

California’s essential workers deserve our highest praise for helping to ensure the nation’s food 
supply is processed, shipped and stocked on local grocery store shelves everywhere.  Their 
essential work starts with the farmer and rancher, who produce the food and fiber that form the 
first critical link in the long and essential supply chain that ends on the grocery store shelf.  The 
importance of a resilient food supply was highlighted in the April 24, 2020 letter from 20 members 
of the Legislature who wrote to Ms. O’Leary and Mr. Steyer asking that food supply be one of the 
highest priorities for the Task Force on Business and Jobs Recovery as they work to recreate a 
resilient California economy.     

Unlike other essential industries, farmers and ranchers work on nature’s schedule. They must start 
planning production operations a year in advance.  Farmers’ crops must be planted, watered, 
tended, and harvested based on the seasons.  Farmers cannot speed up the growth of lettuce, 
tomatoes, corn, or oranges.  There is no way to “catch-up” if fewer crops are planted this year. 
What is planted this spring is the food supply this fall and next year. 

To ensure next year’s food supply keeps grocery store shelves full it is essential that California’s 
farmers have all the tools they need to grow the crops they are planting now. Unfortunately, the 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic has failed to consider the importance of these necessary tools.  

A reliable water supply is at the top of this list of tools farmers need to grow the food that will 
appear in grocery stores later this summer, this fall and next year.  Making sure farmers have the 

21

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



2 

water to grow next year’s food supply is as important as making sure grocery store shelves are 
stocked today. 

California’s farmers need access to as much water as the state can provide this year.  Unfortunately, 
the current water year has been dry, with very little rain and limited snowpack in the upper 
watersheds. This discouraging hydrology is compounded by restrictions on use of groundwater 
and surface water supplies.  Our farmers are left with few options. Unfortunately, the dry 
hydrology cannot be changed. However, government-imposed restrictions can accommodate 
farmers’ needs.  We urge you to direct state agencies to find creative and balanced means to 
maximize water supplies for farmers. Where possible, rules that limit farm water supplies should 
be suspended, modified, or postponed during this critical time.    

We reiterate the message conveyed in recent letters from members of the California Congressional 
delegation and urge your administration to work cooperatively with the federal administration on 
water management. A cooperative federal-state management scheme should be applied in all those 
critical watersheds where the federal government has made significant investments, from the 
Klamath River, to the Bay-Delta and the Colorado River. In this way, we can be assured that state 
and federal water management coordination is maximizing water supplies while respecting our 
state’s commitment to the environment.  As your administration has recognized in other areas, 
cooperation between the state and federal administrations is the best way to solve the new and 
unprecedented challenges we face.  Improved state-federal coordination on water issues also will 
help ensure California’s farmers are efficiently and responsibly using the state’s limited resources 
to maximize the crops they grow this year.   

The undersigned respectfully request that you take the necessary steps to help secure next year’s 
food supply.  We urge you to direct your agencies and departments to find ways to maximize water 
supplies for farmers this year, until such time that we can normalize the food supply chain from 
farmer to grocery store shelf.  

California also needs to ensure that its farmers continue producing a safe, healthy and abundant 
food supply into the future.  We recommend the following outline for state and federal stimulus 
efforts to ensure they address the water supply infrastructure that serves California’s farmers and 
supports the future of our state and national food supply.   

Repair and modernize existing water supply and conveyance infrastructure –Climate change, 
drought and regulation have reduced the water supply once available to farmers.  And, when excess 
water is available, we are missing opportunities to capture and move it simply because our water 
delivery infrastructure is broken.  Subsidence on the state’s major water delivery canals is one 
example.   

Subsidence along segments of the California Aqueduct, Delta-Mendota Canal and Friant-Kern 
Canal has significantly reduced the amount of water that can get to our farmers.  Repairing these 
three canals will improve water supplies to more than two million acres of agricultural land 
growing more than 200 different crops that create jobs for more than 131,000 people in the 
underserved Central Valley.  In addition, downstream jobs in other parts of the state associated 
with these same two million acres employ another 39,000 people.  These repair projects are “shovel 

22

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



3 

ready” and construction can begin immediately.  They simply require funding support.   Local 
agricultural water agencies are ready to pay their share, but the costs are high and state and federal 
funding assistance is critically needed. Funding these shovel-ready projects will create jobs, 
protect our food supply and provide value back to the state for generations. 

Accelerate and Support Existing Programs - Researchers at Columbia University recently 
identified the current dry period facing California as one of the worst in a millennium.  This historic 
drought period is  compounded by state-driven institutional actions, including: 1)  regulatory 
programs which seek to reduce groundwater use under the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act (SGMA); 2)  a state lawsuit against the U.S. Departments of the Interior and Commerce; and 
3) a new permit issued to the State Water Project that reduces water supplies beyond what is
necessary to protect species under the Endangered Species Act.  We believe California can find
ways to turn these negative impacts on farming into positives by: 1) reconsidering the state’s legal
action against biological opinions that protect endangered fish; 2)  providing funding to build water
projects capable of replacing groundwater supplies lost to SGMA; and 3) reconsidering the
scientific foundation of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s recently issued Incidental
Take Permit for the State Water Project (SWP).

The State of California also has an important role to play in the future of farming in the Klamath 
Basin, which straddles the state border with Oregon.  Thanks to the formal request made by you 
and Oregon Governor Kate Brown, the Department of Interior will provide some welcome 
emergency drought assistance in 2020 that will benefit wildlife and mitigate many individuals’ 
conditions.  But the situation is very unstable and the community is ridden by uncertainty and 
anxiety.  In the immediate term, California could provide funding for the California portion 
(Tulelake Irrigation District) of Klamath Project-wide infrastructure assessments for 
modernization and optimization, as the Oregon Energy Trust has done in the Oregon portions of 
the Project.  

Current water conservation programs are periodically funded through water bonds and can 
improve agricultural water supplies by making water conservation measures more affordable for 
farmers.  While these types of demand management programs do not make new water available, 
they can help stretch existing water supplies.  Any new infrastructure stimulus bill should include 
significant funding that incentivizes farmers to further employ state-of-the-art on-farm water 
conservation technology that would otherwise be unaffordable. 

Expand Current Water Supply Infrastructure – California has several options for expanding 
the capacity of existing water supply infrastructure. These modernization and expansion projects 
can create jobs in the near term and support rural agricultural economies over the long-term.  For 
example, repair and enlargement of B.F. Sisk Dam and enlargement of Shasta Dam can increase 
surface water storage without adding new dams on any river.  The impacts of these expanded 
reservoirs can be mitigated in ways that increase protections for endangered species by providing 
additional cold water and creating more flexible pumping operations that can be modified to 
protect fish at sensitive times.  New storage facilities such as Sites Reservoir and Temperance Flat 
Reservoir can provide significant new water supplies for rural economies while adding benefits 
for native species in the Sacramento River, the San Joaquin River, and the Delta.   

23

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



4 

On the Klamath River, Oregon and California have led an unprecedented effort to remove water 
infrastructure considered to be outdated (four private hydroelectric dams).  A return to an 
equivalent focus on irrigation infrastructure, groundwater recharge opportunities, strategic storage, 
and facilities upgrades is equally important, and there are willing partners in the Klamath Project 
and elsewhere in the Klamath watershed. 

Our state stands at a historic crossroads. We believe that the California spirit is evident in the 
leadership shown by your office and the willingness of Californians to change their way of life for 
the good of all.  We are honored to be part of that effort and proud to produce the food that feeds 
the state, our nation, and many other countries.  Now is the time to take a second step in our 
response to COVID-19 by protecting the ability of the state’s farmers to keep grocery store shelves 
stocked with safe, healthy food grown in California.  We respectfully request that your 
administration look for every possible way to increase water supplies to farmers to ensure this 
year’s crop meets next year’s need. 

Sincerely, 

African American Farmers of California Ag Council of California 
Alameda County Farm Bureau Amador County Farm Bureau 
Bob Amarel, Yuba City American Pistachio Growers 
Association of California Egg Farmers Mark Borba, Borba Farms, Riverdale 
William Bourdeau  Butte County Farm Bureau 
      Chairman, California Water Alliance California Agricultural Irrigation  
California Alfalfa and Forage Association      Association 
California Apple Commission California Association of Wheat Growers 
California Bean Shippers Association California Blueberry Commission 
California Citrus Mutual California Cotton Ginners and Growers 
California Farm Bureau Federation      Association  
California League of Food Processors California Safflowers Growers 
California Tomato Growers Association California Warehouse Association 
California Wild Rice Advisory Board California Women for Agriculture 
Central Valley Project Water Association  
Colusa County Farm Bureau  Contra Costa County Farm Bureau  
Joe Del Bosque, Del Bosque Farms, Firebaugh Del Norte County Farm Bureau 
Del Puerto Water District Bill Diedrich, Diedrich Farms, Firebaugh 
El Dorado County Farm Bureau  Elephant Butte Irrigation District 
Family Farm Alliance  Family Water Alliance  
Far West Equipment Dealers Association  Fresno County Farm Bureau  
Glenn County Farm Bureau  Liz Hudson, Hudson Farms, Sanger 
Neil Jones Food Company  Kern County Farm Bureau  
Kings County Farm Bureau  Klamath Water Users Association 
Lassen County Farm Bureau  Stan Lester, Lester Farms, Winters 
Madera County Farm Bureau  Mark McKean, Riverdale 
Merced County Farm Bureau  Milk Producers Council 
Modoc County Farm Bureau  Nevada County Farm Bureau  

24

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



5 

Nisei Farmers League  Olive Growers Council of California   
Orange County Farm Bureau   Placer County Farm Bureau   
Plumas-Sierra County Farm Bureau Riverside County Farm Bureau 
Sacramento County Farm Bureau San Diego County Farm Bureau  
San Joaquin County Farm Bureau San Luis Obispo County Farm Bureau 
Santa Barbara County Farm Bureau Shasta County Farm Bureau 
Siskiyou County Farm Bureau Sonoma County Farm Bureau  
Stanislaus Irrigation District  Tehama County Farm Bureau  
Trinity County Farm Bureau  Tulare County Farm Bureau    
Tulelake Irrigation District   Western Agricultural Processors Association  
Wayne Western, Clovis Western Canal Water District  
Western Growers Association  Yolo County Farm Bureau 

For questions about this letter, please contact: 
Danny Merkley 
California Farm Bureau Federation 
dmerkley@CFBF.com 

Mike Wade 
California Farm Water Coalition 
mwade@farmwater.org 

Dan Keppen 
Family Farm Alliance 
dan@familyfarmalliance.org 

Cc: Hon. Eleni Kounalakis 
Honorable Members of the Legislature 
Hon. Karen Ross 
Hon. Jared Blumenfeld 
Hon. Wade Crowfoot 
Ms. Ann O’Leary 
Ms. Ana Matosantos 
Ms. Rachel Machi Wagoner 
Ms. Christine Hironaka 
Mr. Chris Dombrowski 
Mr. Ben Chida 
Ms. Jacque Roberts 

25

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR 

WASHINGTON 

The Honorable Dianne Feinstein 
United States Senate 
Washington, DC 20510 

Dear Senator Feinstein: 

APR 2 8 2020 

I have reviewed your letters dated April 15, 2020, addressed to me and Governor Newsom 
regarding California water management. 

Rest assured that the Department of the Interior (Department) is continuing coordinated 
operations between the Central Valley Project (CVP) and State Water Project (SWP) on a 
minute, hourly, daily, and weekly basis with the State of California (State). Though it may seem 
strange, given the contentious circumstances in which we have found ourselves, we are 
nonetheless pleased that the State continues to participate with implementing actions associated 
with our 2019 biological opinions. You have the Department's full commitment that we will 
continue these meetings to implement the 2019 biological opinions. 

I agree with your long-held view of the need to improve California water supply reliability 
through enhanced Central Valley Project-State Water Project (CVP-SWP) operations. It is my 
belief that a commitment to updated science employed in the proposed operational changes and 
biological opinions will lead to improved water supply reliability to millions of Californians, 
promote agricultural and industrial prosperity, and protect wildlife and other aquatic resources. 
That has been the Department's goal. Obviously, the State has chosen to move in a different 
direction. 

In your December 19th letter to Governor Newsom and me, you urged "There is only one way to 
avoid this potential crisis, and that is for the federal government and California to work 
together." Governor Newsom responded to your call by 

■ filing a lawsuit on February 20th against the Department for supposed violations related 
to the 2019 biological opinions; 

■ proceeding to have the State issue its own incidental take permit (ITP) on March 30th 
creating separate operating rules for the SWP, a document that is in direct conflict with 
the Federal permits; and 

■ filing, by the State through Attorney General Xavier Becerra, a motion for a preliminary 
injunction and other pleadings on April 21st regarding the CVP. 

26

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



Given the extensive collaboration between the Federal and State agencies in the development of 
the biological opinions, and the fact that these opinions are strongly grounded in the best 
available science, I believe the State's recent actions and litigation are ill-founded and potentially 
unlawful. 

Earlier this month, the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Board (Metropolitan) 
voted to initiate a lawsuit against the State regarding the ITP for long-term operation of the SWP 
in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. In a recent letter to the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (DFW) and the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), Metropolitan stated 
that "[t]he permit issued by DFW does not replace or eliminate the SWP obligation to comply 
with federal ESA and the 2019 Biological Opinions." 

I agree with this statement; there can be no "stand alone permit" apart from the Federal process 
to protect species under the Endangered Species Act. I also agree with Metropolitan that there is 
no technical or scientific justification for concluding that the State's ITP is better or more 
protective than the Federal biological opinions simply because it does not seek to increase SWP 
exports. I believe that the proposal of such limitations on water supply without legal or scientific 
basis is contrary to our obligation to the people and environment. 

I have always appreciated your thoughtful recognition that prudent and science-based 
management of California's water, particularly the operations of the CVP and SWP, is critically 
important for the State's economy, communities, and natural environment. 

Using over a decade of new scientific understanding and operational experience, the 2019 
biological opinions approved new management actions. These new actions provide for the 
protection of endangered and threatened fish species and their habitat, as well as better 
management of cold-water supplies for the survival of winter-run Chinook salmon. The new 
actions allow for more reliable delivery of water to California farmers, families, and 
communities, while serving as a model for collaboration between water project operators and 
fisheries experts in years to come. 

As the California-initiated operations and litigation proceeds, I anticipate that the State and the 
Department will face significant administrative and operational challenges regarding the 
intertwined operations of these two water projects, some of which have not been seriously 
contemplated for decades. The result of this, and any litigation related to this matter, will be 
further uncertainty for the water supplies of over 35 million people, including numerous 
economically disadvantaged communities, farms, groundwater sustainability and ecosystems 
dependent on these water sources. 

27

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



I appreciate your continued communication as we move forward to better ensure water supply 
reliability for the benefit of the State's working families, local communities, and environment. A 
similar reply is being sent to the cosigners of your letter. 

28

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



29

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



1 

April 20, 2020 

The Honorable Mitch McConnell The Honorable Chuck Schumer 
Majority Leader  Minority Leader 
U.S. Senate  U.S. Senate  
S-230, The Capitol S-221, The Capitol
Washington, D.C. 20510 Washington, D.C. 20510

The Honorable Nancy Pelosi The Honorable Kevin McCarthy 
Speaker  Minority Leader 
U.S. House of Representatives U.S. House of Representatives  
H-232, The Capitol Room H-204, The Capitol 
Washington, D.C. 20515 Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Majority Leader McConnell, Minority Leader Schumer, Speaker Pelosi and Minority Leader McCarthy: 

On behalf of the undersigned parties, we thank you for your bipartisan leadership to address the massive 
consequences caused by the recent COVID-19 outbreak by passing legislation to address and mitigate for this 
emergency. We represent thousands of Western farmers, ranchers and businesses on millions of acres of 
productive land who provide the food our nation relies upon, as well as many of the public agencies who supply 
water to Western urban, suburban and rural residents. As you consider further measures to help our country 
recover economically - including boosting federal funding for infrastructure -we urge that you consider 
critically needed investments that address the shortcomings of our aging Western water infrastructure.  

The COVID-19 pandemic underscores the importance of safety and stability provided by domestic food 
production. As this crisis has pointed out, a stable domestic food supply is essential and of national security 
interest. For farmers and ranchers to survive, and for food to continue to be produced here in the American 
West, a stable water supply is a necessary part of any conversation about our national food security.   

As a result, we believe it is critical that our country continually invest in the Western water infrastructure 
necessary to meet current and future demands. Our existing water infrastructure in the West is aging and in 
need of rehabilitation and improvement. Most of the federally funded water infrastructure projects that benefit 
the large cities, rural communities and small farms in the West were built over 50 years ago. As hydrological 
conditions in the West change and populations continue to expand, failure to address water security has become 
increasingly critical. Failing to improve water infrastructure and develop supplies will inevitably result in 
additional conflict as pressure grows to ‘solve’ urban and environmental water shortages. Moving water away 
from Western irrigated agriculture will surely contribute to the decline of our national food security.  

Our organizations collectively believe that water conservation, water recycling, watershed management, 
conveyance, desalination, water transfers, groundwater storage, and surface storage are all needed for a 
diversified water management portfolio and such efforts MUST be included in the next stimulus package.  

 Water conservation, one of the most cost-effective actions that can positively affect water supply
stability, needs to continue to be aggressively pursued in conjunction with new water storage and other
actions.

30

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



2 

 Additional funding will be needed to kick-start new water recycling, reuse and desalination projects
currently being studied or that are ready for construction, either through the Water Infrastructure
Improvements for the Nation (WIIN) Act of 2016 and other funding authorities.

 Programs that fund water conservation and management improvements, fish passage, and habitat
restoration - all in support of water project operations in the Reclamation states of the West - need
additional funding to accelerate construction of this ready-to-go infrastructure.

 We need new water storage – both surface water and groundwater – in order to adapt to a changing
hydrology and develop usable and sustainable supplies to meet growing demands for water. Water
storage projects should be tailored to local circumstances and need. This means in some cases projects
will be constructed above ground and others below ground. Some projects will be traditional
construction and others green infrastructure, dependent on the wide variety of local needs.

 The federal government must remain an active partner and expand its involvement in finding 21st

century solutions to water problems in the West either through direct funding to help meet these needs
or by developing and expanding federal financing mechanisms that have a very low cost to the
Treasury and to taxpayers. There is a need for additional federal funding for loans from the Bureau of
Reclamation (Reclamation) to non-federal irrigation districts responsible for operating, maintaining
and rehabilitating federally owned infrastructure (under P.L. 111-11 authorities). These local operating
entities need immediate funding and financing for extraordinary repairs and rehabilitation on their
federally owned canals and water delivery structures.  Most, if not all of these major construction
projects are ready to proceed if direct financing was made available. Unfortunately, these operating
entities have very few, if any, affordable financing options available. In short, water resource
infrastructure investments in rehabilitating these aging federal projects should be made more attractive
and affordable for these non-federal districts who operate and maintain this critical federally owned
water delivery infrastructure.

 Similar funding and financing tools should be made available to commence construction on permitted
and approved water storage and supply infrastructure. The WIIN Act made funding available to help
non-federal entities plan, design and construct new water supply infrastructure at both federal and non-
federally owned facilities. New financing tools like the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation
Act (WIFIA) can also work to finance some non-federally led construction on new and existing water
supply and delivery projects. Any existing and additional funding could be made available
immediately to kick-start these worthy projects that have already been approved by Reclamation and
the Congress.

 Beyond monetary assistance, the federal government should also bring forward policy changes that
help ensure that water projects are built in a timely fashion. Making funding available for projects is
useless if projects take decades to be approved. In the past, Congress has, on a bipartisan basis, put
forward significant efforts to streamline and improve environmental regulation and permitting
processes. Any infrastructure package should contain  similar provisions to streamline the
development of water projects.

Congress must use any infrastructure stimulus package to not only address our nation’s chronic needs 
surrounding roads, bridges and airports, but to also include water infrastructure needs for storage and 
conveyance. If and when additional infrastructure funding is discussed as part of a larger economic stimulus 

31

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



3 

package, we need your help to ensure that federal dollars flow to the water infrastructure needs mentioned 
above.  We look forward to working with you to address this critical need and national security interest. 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please do not hesitate to contact Erin Huston (California Farm 
Bureau Federation - ehuston@cfbf.com), Dan Keppen (Family Farm Alliance – dan@familyfarmalliance.org) 
or Dennis Nuxoll (Western Growers Association - dnuxoll@wga.com).  

Sincerely, 

African American Farmers of California  Agribusiness & Water Council of Arizona 

American Pistachio Growers Arizona Cotton Growers 

Arizona Farm Bureau Federation Arnold Irrigation District (OR) 

Association of California Egg Farmers  Association of California Water Agencies 

Association of Oregon Counties  Associated Oregon Hazelnut Industries 

Bitter Root Irrigation District (MT) Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (CA) 
California Agricultural Irrigation Association  California Alfalfa and Forage Association 

California Apple Commission   California Association of Wheat Growers 

California Bean Shippers Association   California Blueberry Association 

California Blueberry Commission  California Cattlemen’s Association 

California Cherry Growers and Industry Association California Citrus Mutual 

California Cotton Alliance California Cotton Ginners and Growers Association 

California Farm Bureau Federation California Fresh Fruit Association 

California Grain and Feed Association   California Pear Growers Association 

California Pork Producers Association  California Seed Association 

California State Beekeepers Association  California Sweetpotato Council 

California Warehouse Association California Water Alliance 

California Wool Growers Association  California Wild Rice Advisory Board 

California Women for Agriculture  Carlsbad Irrigation District (NM) 

Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District  Central Oregon Irrigation District 

Central California Irrigation District Central Valley Project Water Association (CA) 

Charleston Drainage District (CA) Colorado Farm Bureau 

Colorado Fruit and Vegetable Growers Association  Colorado River District (CO) 

Colorado Wool Growers Association Columbia Basin Development League (WA) 

Del Puerto Water District (CA)  Deschutes Basin Board of Control (OR) 

Dolores Water Conservancy District (CO) Eagle Field Water District (CA) 

Eldorado County Water Agency (CA)   Electrical District No. 3 of Pinal County (AZ) 

Elephant Butte Irrigation District (NM)  Family Farm Alliance (WEST-WIDE)  

Farmers Conservation Alliance (CA/MT/NV/OR)  Farwell Irrigation District (NE)  

Far West Equipment Dealers Association (CA)  Friant Water Authority (CA) 

Garrison Diversion Conservancy District (ND)  Gering-Ft. Laramie Irrigation District 

(NE/WY)Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District (CA)  Goshen Irrigation District (WY)  

Grassland Basin Authority (CA)  Grower-Shipper Association of Central  

32

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



4 

California Grower-Shipper Association of Hawaii Farm Bill Federation  

     Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties (CA) Henry Miller Reclamation District #2131 

(CA)Idaho Farm Bureau Federation  Idaho Water Users Association   

Imperial Irrigation District (CA)  Imperial Valley  

Kansas Bostwick Irrigation District (KS)           Vegetable Growers Association (CA) 

Kern County Water Agency (CA) Kings River Conservation District (CA) 

Kittitas County Timothy Hay Growers & Suppliers  Kittitas County Farm Bureau (WA) 

Kittitas Reclamation District (WA) Klamath Water Users Association (CA /OR) 

Little Snake River Conservation District (WY)  Lone Pine Irrigation District (OR) 
Lower Yellowstone Irrigation Project (MT) Mercy Springs Water District (CA) 

Milk Producers Council (CA)  Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage Dist.(AZ) 

Modesto Irrigation District (CA)  Montana Water Resources Association 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (CA) Nampa & Meridian Irrigation District (ID) 

Nebraska State Irrigation Association  Nebraska Water Users Association 

New Magma Irrigation and Drainage District (AZ)  New Mexico Farm and Livestock Bureau 

Nevada Farm Bureau Federation  Nisei Farmers League (CA) 

North Dakota Irrigation Association North Dakota Water Users Association 

Northeast Oregon Water Association  Northern California Water Association 

North Platte Valley Irrigators Association (NE)  North Unit Irrigation District (OR) 

Ochoco Irrigation District (OR)  Olive Growers Council of California 

Olive Oil Commission of California Oregon Association of Conservation Districts 

Oregon Association of Nurseries Oregon Cattlemen's Association 

Oregon Dairy Farmers Association Oregon Farm Bureau 

Oregon Forest Industries Council Oregon Water Resources Congress 

Oregon Women for Agriculture  Pacheco Water District (CA) 

Pacific Seed Association Panoche Drainage District (CA) 

Panoche Water District (CA) Pathfinder Irrigation District (NE / WY) 

Pershing County Water Conservation District (NV) Plant California Alliance 

Pothook Water Conservancy District (CO) Queen Creek Irrigation District (AZ) 

Reclamation District 108 (CA)  River Garden Farms (CA) 

Roza Irrigation District (WA)  Roza Sunnyside Board of Joint Control (WA) 

Salt River Project (AZ)  San Carlos Irrigation & Drainage District (AZ)  

San Luis Water District (CA)  San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (CA) 

Sargent Irrigation District (NE)  San Joaquin River Exchange Contractors  

Savery – Little Snake River            Water Authority (CA) 

      Water Conservancy District (WY) Sites Project Authority (CA) 

South Columbia Basin Irrigation District (WA) Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District 

South Valley Water Association (CA) Southwestern Water Conservation District (CO)   

Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (WA) Swalley Irrigation District (OR)  

Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority (CA) Three Sisters Irrigation District (OR) 

Truckee-Carson Irrigation District (NV) Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District (CA)  

Tumalo Irrigation District (OR) United Water Conservation District (CA) 

33

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



5 

Utah Farm Bureau Federation Utah Water Users Association  

Ventura County Agricultural Association (CA) Washington State Farm Bureau   

Washington State Potato Commission Washington State Water Resources Association  

Western Growers Association (AZ/CA/CO/NM) Western Agricultural Processors Association (CA) 

Western Plant Health Association (CA) West Stanislaus Irrigation District (CA)  

Whitehead H2O (CO) Yuba Water Agency (CA) 

Yuma County Water Users Association (AZ) 

cc:    The Hon. Lisa Murkowski, Chair, Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources 
The Hon. Joe Manchin, Ranking Member, Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources 
The Hon. John Barrasso, Chairman, Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works 
The Hon. Thomas Carper, Ranking Member, Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works 
The Hon. Jared Huffman, Chair, House Committee on Natural Resources 
The Hon. Rob Bishop, Ranking Member, House Committee on Natural Resources 
The Hon. Peter DeFazio, Chair, House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure 
The Hon. Sam Graves, Ranking Member, House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure 

34

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



1 

April 20, 2020 

The Honorable Donald Trump 
President of the United States of America 
The White House 
Washington, DC  20500 

Dear Mr. President:  

On behalf of the undersigned parties, we thank you for your unwavering leadership and continued commitment 
to addressing the massive consequences caused by the recent COVID-19 outbreak by passing legislation to 
address and mitigate for this emergency. As you have  stated, an important step in combating the long-term 
impacts of the pandemic is going to be a renewed effort to meet the systemic infrastructure demands  of the 
nation. We strongly agree. In particular, we urge you to advance critically needed investments that address the 
shortcomings of our aging Western water infrastructure.  

We represent thousands of Western farmers, ranchers and businesses on millions of acres of productive land 
who provide the food our nation relies upon, as well as many of the public agencies who supply water to 
Western urban, suburban and rural farms and residents. Our members feel the impacts of crumbling 
infrastructure virtually on a daily basis. Therefore, we believe it is vital that improving Western water related 
infrastructure, an area to which your administration has shown a strong commitment, be high on the list of 
priorities the administration and Congress address at this critical time.         

The COVID-19 pandemic underscores the importance of safety and stability provided by domestic food 
production. As this crisis has pointed out, a stable domestic food supply is essential and of national security 
interest. For farmers and ranchers to survive, and for food to continue to be produced here in the American 
West, a stable water supply is a necessary part of any conversation about our national food security.   

As a result, we believe it is critical that our country continually invest in the Western water infrastructure 
necessary to meet current and future demands. Our existing water infrastructure in the West is aging and in 
need of rehabilitation and improvement. Most of the federally funded water infrastructure projects that benefit 
the large cities, rural communities and small farms in the West were built over 50 years ago. As hydrological 
conditions in the West change and populations continue to expand, failure to address water security has become 
increasingly critical. Failing to improve water infrastructure and develop supplies will inevitably result in 
additional conflict as pressure grows to ‘solve’ urban and environmental water shortages. Moving water away 
from Western irrigated agriculture will surely contribute to the decline of our national food security.  

Our organizations collectively believe that water conservation, water recycling, watershed management, 
conveyance, desalination, water transfers, groundwater storage, and surface storage are all needed for a 
diversified water management portfolio and such efforts MUST be included in the next stimulus package.  

 Water conservation, one of the most cost-effective actions that can positively affect water supply
stability, needs to continue to be aggressively pursued in conjunction with new water storage and other
actions.

35

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



2 

 Additional funding will be needed to kick-start new water recycling, reuse and desalination projects
currently being studied or that are ready for construction, either through the Water Infrastructure
Improvements for the Nation (WIIN) Act of 2016 and other funding authorities.

 Programs that fund water conservation and management improvements, fish passage, and habitat
restoration - all in support of water project operations in the Reclamation states of the West - need
additional funding to accelerate construction of this ready-to-go infrastructure.

 We need new water storage – both surface water and groundwater – in order to adapt to a changing
hydrology and develop usable and sustainable supplies to meet growing demands for water. Water
storage projects should be tailored to local circumstances and need. This means in some cases projects
will be constructed above ground and others below ground. Some projects will be traditional
construction and others green infrastructure, dependent on the wide variety of local needs.

 The federal government must remain an active partner and expand its involvement in finding 21st

century solutions to water problems in the West either through direct funding to help meet these needs
or by developing and expanding federal financing mechanisms that have a very low cost to the
Treasury and to taxpayers. There is a need for additional federal funding for loans from the Bureau of
Reclamation (Reclamation) to non-federal irrigation districts responsible for operating, maintaining
and rehabilitating federally owned infrastructure (under P.L. 111-11 authorities). These local operating
entities need immediate funding and financing for extraordinary repairs and rehabilitation on their
federally owned canals and water delivery structures.  Most, if not all of these major construction
projects are ready to proceed if direct financing was made available. Unfortunately, these operating
entities have very few if any affordable financing options available. In short, water resource
infrastructure investments in rehabilitating these aging federal projects should be made more attractive
and affordable for these non-federal districts who operate and maintain this critical federally owned
water delivery infrastructure.

 Similar funding and financing tools should be made available to commence construction on permitted
and approved water storage and supply infrastructure. The WIIN Act made funding available to help
non-federal entities plan, design and construct new water supply infrastructure at both federal and non-
federally owned facilities. New financing tools like the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation
Act (WIFIA) can also work to finance some non-federally led construction on new and existing water
supply and delivery projects. Any existing and additional funding could be made available
immediately to kick-start these worthy projects that have already been approved by Reclamation and
the Congress.

Beyond monetary assistance, the federal government should also continue to bring forward policy changes that 
help ensure that water projects are built in a timely fashion. Making funding and financing available for projects 
is useless if projects take decades to be approved and permitted. In the past, this administration has put forward 
significant efforts to streamline and improve environmental regulation and permitting processes. Any 
infrastructure package should include a continued commitment to streamline the development of water 
projects. 

Finally, in order to respond to current and future water shortages, we applaud your administration in providing 
federal agencies with more flexibility under existing environmental laws and regulations to encourage a more 
cooperative approach toward achieving multiple goals. And, where such flexibility currently exists in law, we 
appreciate that your administration has directed federal agencies to use those flexibilities to act with the 
urgency and promptness that this crisis demands.  

36

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



3 

In conclusion, Mr. President, it is imperative that your administration continue its strong support for the 
economic livelihood of so many of our members, especially at this moment in time. This can be achieved 
through your continued efforts to work with Congress on any future infrastructure economic stimulus package. 
Such legislation should not only address our nation’s chronic needs surrounding roads, bridges and airports, 
but it should also focus on our aging water infrastructure, upon which Western farms, ranches, cities and towns 
rely. If and when additional infrastructure funding is discussed as part of a larger economic stimulus package, 
we need your help in making sure that federal dollars flow to the urgent water infrastructure needs mentioned 
above in this letter.  

We look forward to working with you to address this critical need and national security interest. 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please do not hesitate to contact Erin Huston (California Farm 
Bureau Federation - ehuston@cfbf.com), Dan Keppen (Family Farm Alliance – dan@familyfarmalliance.org) 
or Dennis Nuxoll (Western Growers Association - dnuxoll@wga.com).  

Sincerely, 

African American Farmers of California  Agribusiness & Water Council of Arizona 

American Pistachio Growers Arizona Cotton Growers 

Arizona Farm Bureau Federation Arnold Irrigation District (OR) 

Association of California Egg Farmers  Association of California Water Agencies 

Association of Oregon Counties  Associated Oregon Hazelnut Industries 

Bitter Root Irrigation District (MT) Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (CA) 
California Agricultural Irrigation Association  California Alfalfa and Forage Association 

California Apple Commission   California Association of Wheat Growers 

California Bean Shippers Association   California Blueberry Association 

California Blueberry Commission  California Cattlemen’s Association 

California Cherry Growers and Industry Association California Citrus Mutual 

California Cotton Alliance California Cotton Ginners and Growers Association 

California Farm Bureau Federation California Fresh Fruit Association 

California Grain and Feed Association   California Pear Growers Association 

California Pork Producers Association  California Seed Association 

California State Beekeepers Association  California Sweetpotato Council 

California Warehouse Association California Water Alliance 

California Wool Growers Association  California Wild Rice Advisory Board 

California Women for Agriculture  Carlsbad Irrigation District (NM) 

Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District  Central Oregon Irrigation District 

Central California Irrigation District Central Valley Project Water Association (CA) 

Charleston Drainage District (CA) Colorado Farm Bureau 

Colorado Fruit and Vegetable Growers Association  Colorado River District (CO) 

Colorado Wool Growers Association Columbia Basin Development League (WA) 

Del Puerto Water District (CA)  Deschutes Basin Board of Control (OR) 

Dolores Water Conservancy District (CO) Eagle Field Water District (CA) 

37

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



4 

Eldorado County Water Agency (CA)   Electrical District No. 3 of Pinal County (AZ) 

Elephant Butte Irrigation District (NM)  Family Farm Alliance (WEST-WIDE)  

Farmers Conservation Alliance (CA/MT/NV/OR) Farwell Irrigation District (NE)  

Far West Equipment Dealers Association (CA)  Friant Water Authority (CA) 

Garrison Diversion Conservancy District (ND)  Gering-Ft. Laramie Irrigation District 

(NE/WY)Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District (CA)  Goshen Irrigation District (WY)  

Grassland Basin Authority (CA)  Grower-Shipper Association of Central 

California Grower-Shipper Association of  Hawaii Farm Bill Federation  

     Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties (CA) Henry Miller Reclamation District #2131 

(CA)Idaho Farm Bureau Federation  Idaho Water Users Association   

Imperial Irrigation District (CA)  Imperial Valley  

Kansas Bostwick Irrigation District (KS)           Vegetable Growers Association (CA) 

Kern County Water Agency (CA) Kings River Conservation District (CA) 

Kittitas County Timothy Hay Growers & Suppliers  Kittitas County Farm Bureau (WA) 

Kittitas Reclamation District (WA) Klamath Water Users Association (CA /OR) 

Little Snake River Conservation District (WY)  Lone Pine Irrigation District (OR) 
Lower Yellowstone Irrigation Project (MT) Mercy Springs Water District (CA) 

Milk Producers Council (CA)  Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage Dist.(AZ) 

Modesto Irrigation District (CA)  Montana Water Resources Association 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (CA) Nampa & Meridian Irrigation District (ID) 

Nebraska State Irrigation Association  Nebraska Water Users Association 

New Magma Irrigation and Drainage District (AZ)  New Mexico Farm and Livestock Bureau 

Nevada Farm Bureau Federation  Nisei Farmers League (CA) 

North Dakota Irrigation Association North Dakota Water Users Association 

Northeast Oregon Water Association  Northern California Water Association 

North Platte Valley Irrigators Association (NE)  North Unit Irrigation District (OR) 

Ochoco Irrigation District (OR)  Olive Growers Council of California 

Olive Oil Commission of California Oregon Association of Conservation Districts 

Oregon Association of Nurseries Oregon Cattlemen's Association 

Oregon Dairy Farmers Association Oregon Farm Bureau 

Oregon Forest Industries Council Oregon Water Resources Congress 

Oregon Women for Agriculture  Pacheco Water District (CA) 

Pacific Seed Association Panoche Drainage District (CA) 

Panoche Water District (CA) Pathfinder Irrigation District (NE / WY) 

Pershing County Water Conservation District (NV) Plant California Alliance 

Pothook Water Conservancy District (CO) Queen Creek Irrigation District (AZ) 

Reclamation District 108 (CA)  River Garden Farms (CA) 

Roza Irrigation District (WA)  Roza Sunnyside Board of Joint Control (WA) 

Salt River Project (AZ)  San Carlos Irrigation & Drainage District (AZ)  

San Luis Water District (CA)  San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (CA) 

Sargent Irrigation District (NE)  San Joaquin River Exchange Contractors  

     Water Authority (CA) 

38

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



5 

Savery – Little Snake River          Sites Project Authority (CA) 

      Water Conservancy District (WY) South Columbia Basin Irrigation District (WA) 

Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District South Valley Water Association (CA) 

Southwestern Water Conservation District (CO) Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (WA) 

Swalley Irrigation District (OR) Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority (CA)  

Three Sisters Irrigation District (OR) Truckee-Carson Irrigation District (NV)  

Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District (CA) Tumalo Irrigation District (OR)  

United Water Conservation District (CA) Utah Farm Bureau Federation  

Utah Water Users Association Ventura County Agricultural Association (CA) 

Washington State Farm Bureau  Washington State Potato Commission 

Washington State Water Resources Association Western Growers Association (AZ/CA/CO/NM) 

Western Agricultural Processors Association (CA) Western Plant Health Association (CA)  

West Stanislaus Irrigation District (CA) Whitehead H2O (CO)  

Yuba Water Agency (CA) Yuma County Water Users Association (AZ) 

cc: The Honorable David Bernhardt, Secretary, Department of Interior 
The Honorable Sonny Perdue, Secretary, Department of Agriculture 
The Honorable Wilbur Ross, Secretary, Department of Commerce 
The Honorable Andrew Wheeler, Administrator, Environmental Protection Agency 

39

AGENDA ITEM 7a.



40

AGENDA ITEM 7b.



41

AGENDA ITEM 7b.



42

AGENDA ITEM 7b.



43

AGENDA ITEM 7b.



44

AGENDA ITEM 7b.



45

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



46

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



47

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



48

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



49

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



50

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



51

AGENDA ITEM 7c.



52

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



53

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



54

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



55

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



56

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



57

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



58

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



59

AGENDA ITEM 7d.



60

AGENDA ITEM 7e.



61

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



62

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



63

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



64

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



65

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



66

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



67

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



68

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



69

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



70

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



71

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



72

AGENDA ITEM 8a.



73

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



74

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



75

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



76

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



77

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



78

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



79

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



80

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



81

AGENDA ITEM 8b.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

RESOLUTION NO 20-03 

Authorization to File an Application for a Grant Under the Proposition 68 Grant Program 
And to Enter into an Agreement with the California Department Of Conservation 

WHEREAS, the Kings River Conservation District (District) has a responsibility to 
participate in projects that will benefit flood maintenance, habitat, and recreational use on 
the Kings River in Fresno, Kings, and Tulare Counties; and 

WHEREAS, the Kings River Conservation District desires to make an application for 
funding under the Proposition 68 Grant Program’s Working Lands and Riparian Corridors 
Program riparian corridor restoration grant solicitation, to remove invasive botany species 
and clean up debris on the Kings River; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the District that 
application be made to the California Department of Conservation for Proposition 68 Grant 
funds for Kings River clean up (Section 80134(c)(2) of Chapter 10 of Division 45 of the Public 
Resources Code and amendments thereto); and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the General Manager, Deputy General 
Manager, or their designee, is hereby authorized to prepare the necessary data, conduct 
investigations, sign, and file such an application with the California Department of 
Conservation and execute a grant agreement with the California Department of 
Conservation, committing the District to all assurances and certifications therein. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was passed and adopted by the Board of Directors 
at the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Kings River Conservation District on 
this 12th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

_______________________________________ 
 President 

ATTEST: 

 Secretary 

82

AGENDA ITEM 9




